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1                         Wednesday Morning Session,

2                         November 3, 2021.

3                         - - -

4             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  The Public

5 Utilities Commission of Ohio has set for hearing at

6 this time and place Case No. 20-1437-TR-CVF which is

7 captioned In the Matter of Rafat Yousef Obeid Hasan,

8 Notice of Apparent Violation and Intent to Assess

9 Forfeiture.

10             Good morning, everyone.  My name is Jacky

11 St. John and with me is Nick Walstra.  We are the

12 Attorney Examiners assigned by the Commission to hear

13 the case.

14             At this time we'll take appearances of

15 the parties.  First on behalf of the Staff.

16             MS. KERN:  Thank you, your Honor.  On

17 behalf of the Staff of the Public Utilities

18 Commission of Ohio, Dave Yost, Attorney General,

19 Section Chief John Jones, Assistant Attorney General

20 Kyle Kern.

21             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Thank you.

22             And Mr. Hasan, will you please provide

23 your name along with the spelling and address for the

24 record.

25             MR. HASAN:  Do you want me to stand up?
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1             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  You can stay

2 seated, that's fine.

3             MR. HASAN:  My name is Rafat Hasan,

4 Warwick Avenue, 7413 Warwick Avenue, Reynoldsburg,

5 Ohio, zip code 43068.

6             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Thank you.

7             And at this time, I'll go ahead and turn

8 it over to Staff.  Please proceed.

9             MS. KERN:  Thank you, your Honor.  The

10 Staff would like to call Trooper Morgan to the stand.

11             (Witness placed under oath.)

12                         - - -

13                    STEVEN R. MORGAN

14 being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, was

15 examined and testified as follows:

16                   DIRECT EXAMINATION

17 By Ms. Kern:

18        Q.   Let me know if you can't hear me.  I'll

19 try to speak up.

20        A.   That's fine.

21        Q.   State your name for the record, sir.

22        A.   Steven Robert Morgan.

23        Q.   And where are you employed?

24        A.   I'm employed by the State of Ohio.  I'm a

25 Motor Carrier Enforcement Officer.
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1        Q.   What is your position?

2        A.   I'm an enforcement officer.  I inspect

3 semi trucks.

4        Q.   How long have you been with the Patrol?

5        A.   I've been with the Patrol almost 19

6 years, but I've been an Inspector for six.

7        Q.   And can you explain your duties in your

8 capacity as Patrolman?

9        A.   Beg your pardon?

10        Q.   Your duties in your capacity as a

11 Patrolman Inspector.

12        A.   Just to make the roads safe, inspect the

13 semis on the highway.

14        Q.   Can you detail any specific training that

15 you have in that area.

16        A.   We went to training at our Ohio State

17 Patrol Academy and have Part A and Part B, Haz Mat

18 and anything to do with the commercial motor

19 vehicles.

20        Q.   Do you agree that motor carrier

21 inspections are conducted to protect the safety of

22 the Ohio traveling public?

23        A.   Yes, ma'am.

24             MS. KERN:  Your Honors, I'd like to have

25 marked as Staff Exhibit 1 a copy of the
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1 Driver/Vehicle Examination Report.

2             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  That will be

3 so marked.

4             (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)

5        Q.   (By Ms. Kern) Mr. Morgan, I'd like you to

6 take a look at the Vehicle Examination Report that

7 I've just marked as Staff Exhibit 1.

8        A.   Yes, ma'am, that's the Inspection Report

9 I did.

10        Q.   So you recognize this document; is that

11 correct?

12        A.   Yes, ma'am.

13        Q.   Is this document a Patrol record?

14        A.   Yes, it is.

15        Q.   It's kept in the ordinary course of

16 business?

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   Is it the practice of the Ohio State

19 Highway Patrol to make this report?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   Is this document in the same condition

22 substantially as when you prepared it?

23        A.   Yes, it is.

24        Q.   And what was the reason for you producing

25 this Inspection Report of the motor carrier vehicle
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1 operated by Mr. Hasan?

2        A.   I observed the vehicle driving up the

3 road and had the dolly on the trailer.  You got two

4 dollies.  One dolly was down and the other one was

5 up.  The fact is, the cross bar was missing which

6 only allowed one dolly to go up, in other words,

7 dragging the ground.

8        Q.   So you remember the inspection; is that

9 correct?

10        A.   Yes, ma'am.

11        Q.   Do you remember the approximate date?

12        A.   6-29 I believe it is.

13        Q.   Okay.  The time that the inspection

14 occurred?

15        A.   Roughly 9:30.

16        Q.   And do you recall where it occurred?

17        A.   Down at Rickenbacker Parkway.

18        Q.   Who's the driver listed on the report?

19        A.   Mr. Hasan.

20        Q.   To the best of your recollection, is

21 Mr. Hasan present at this hearing today?

22        A.   Yes, he is.

23        Q.   And did you provide Mr. Hasan with the

24 copy of the report when you stopped him?

25        A.   Yes, ma'am, after I got the report
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1 completed, I gave him a copy, yes.

2        Q.   And there are several violations that are

3 noted on the report, but I'd like for you to look at

4 the last violation that's in bold text.  The

5 violation code is 383.23A, as in apple, 2?

6        A.   Yes, ma'am.

7        Q.   And can you explain that violation,

8 please?

9        A.   After I stopped the vehicle, was doing an

10 inspection, I always ask the driver for his driver's

11 license.  He got the driver's license out.  I asked

12 Mr. Hasan where his glasses was, and he said that he

13 had laser surgery done back in his country about six

14 months ago.

15             So I said, "Well, it's still on your

16 license that you have to have corrective lenses."  I

17 said, "Do you have corrective lenses?"  He said no,

18 he didn't have any because he didn't need them

19 because of the corrective laser surgery.

20             I said, "Well, as long as the license

21 says that you have to have glasses, I've got to go by

22 that."  So if he had a paper saying that the laser

23 surgery has been completed, I could take that, but he

24 did not have that with him, so the only thing he had

25 was his license which showed corrective lenses were
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1 needed.

2        Q.   So the license showed that corrective

3 lenses were needed; is that correct?

4        A.   Yes, ma'am.

5        Q.   And Mr. Hasan had no documentation that

6 such corrective lenses were not necessary to drive;

7 is that correct?

8        A.   No, ma'am, he did not.

9             MS. KERN:  Thank you.  Your Honor, I

10 would like to move Staff Exhibit 1 into the record,

11 and I have no further questions for Mr. Morgan.

12             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Okay, thank

13 you.  I have a few questions.

14                         - - -

15                      EXAMINATION

16 By Attorney Examiner St. John:

17        Q.   Trooper Morgan, you had mentioned that

18 the reason for pulling Mr. Hasan over had to do with

19 a cross bar and some dollies that were uneven.  Could

20 you speak a little bit more to that.  I'm not

21 familiar with that terminology.

22        A.   On a trailer you've got two dollies which

23 holds -- when you're not hooked to a truck, that

24 holds the front of the trailer up, okay.  When he

25 cranked his dollies up that morning, it was on a rail
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1 container, chassis is what it was, when he cranked

2 them up, the one dolly came up, the other dolly

3 stayed down because there's no cross member to tie'em

4 in, tie'em together.

5             So by doing that, it stayed down; he

6 never noticed that.  Then when he got on the road, it

7 was dragging on the ground.  That's when I approached

8 him and stopped him.

9        Q.   So dragging on the ground, is that any

10 sort of violation or is that just a safety thing that

11 you wanted to make him aware of?

12        A.   It's a violation for not cranking your

13 dollies up, and it's also a safety issue too because

14 he could hit a pothole, could bend the dollies back

15 which could break them off, could then injure

16 somebody behind him following him.

17        Q.   Thank you.  I also see on the Driver

18 Examination Report that there are a number of other

19 violations listed here.  Are you familiar with why we

20 are here today discussing only one of those

21 violations?

22        A.   Really I don't understand why we've got

23 the one, but the one was the main one, was the

24 glasses, yes, ma'am.

25        Q.   Thank you.  You also mentioned when you
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1 were giving your testimony about the laser eye

2 surgery, that if Mr. Hasan had had any sort of

3 documentation showing that he had had the laser eye

4 surgery, that you would have accepted that; is that

5 correct?

6        A.   Yes, ma'am, I would have accepted that,

7 yes.

8        Q.   What kind of documentation would that be?

9        A.   Documentation from the eye doctor saying

10 they have done the surgery and he's 20/20 or whatever

11 the prescription is, let us know that that has been

12 done.  With no documentation, the license was still

13 showing that he needed glasses.

14             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Okay.  Thank

15 you.  That's all the questions that I have.

16             Judge Walstra, do you have any questions?

17             ATTORNEY EXAMINER WALSTRA:  No.

18             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Mr. Hasan,

19 do you have any questions for this witness?  I'll

20 remind you again, this time right now is not your

21 opportunity to give your side of the story, but if

22 you have any questions for the testimony that this

23 particular witness has just given, this is your

24 opportunity to ask him any questions now.

25             MR. HASAN:  Yeah, I just want to tell him
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1 everything he said, that was true, but that surgery

2 was from three months ago, and I told him I make a

3 surgery on my eyes, then the doctor say I have to

4 rest my eyes a little bit.  That time when he's

5 telling me --

6             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  I'm sorry to

7 cut you off, Mr. Hasan.  It sounds like you're giving

8 your side of the story a little bit, and I haven't

9 had a chance to swear you in yet, so if you wouldn't

10 mind just pausing kind of telling your side of the

11 story at the moment.  Do you have any questions at

12 this time?

13             MR. HASAN:  No.

14             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Okay, thank

15 you.  And I promise we'll come back to you.  Thank

16 you.

17             Miss Kern, do you have any redirect?

18             MS. KERN:  Not for this witness, thank

19 you.

20             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Okay, thank

21 you.  Mr. Hasan, this Exhibit 1 that has been offered

22 by Staff, do you have any objections to admitting

23 this into the record?

24             MR. HASAN:  None.

25             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Okay, thank
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1 you.  This will be so admitted.

2             (EXHIBIT ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

3             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Thank you,

4 Trooper Morgan.

5             MS. KERN:  Your Honor, Staff would like

6 to call our second witness Chip Moser to the stand.

7             (Witness placed under oath.)

8                         - - -

9                      ROD A. MOSER

10 being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, was

11 examined and testified as follows:

12                   DIRECT EXAMINATION

13 By Ms. Kern:

14        Q.   Sir, can you please state your full name

15 for the record, please.

16        A.   My name is Rod Alan Moser.

17        Q.   Where are you employed?

18        A.   I'm employed as the Chief of the

19 Compliance and Registration sections for the

20 Transportation Department of the Public Utilities

21 Commission of Ohio.

22        Q.   And how long have you been in that

23 position as Chief?

24        A.   Roughly four-and-a-half months.

25        Q.   What are your duties?
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1        A.   I'm sorry, four-and-a-half years.

2        Q.   And what are your duties?

3        A.   One of my duties is to administer the

4 civil forfeiture process for the Transportation

5 Department.

6        Q.   And what are your expert qualifications

7 in violations or subject matter of the violations?

8 Do you have any certifications?

9        A.   I do have certifications as an Inspector,

10 North American Standards Parts A and B, General Haz

11 Mat, Bulk and Other Motor Coach and Cargo Tank.

12        Q.   And can you explain with respect to this

13 case how you determined the amount of the forfeiture

14 assigned to Mr. Hasan?

15        A.   Sure.  The forfeitures are determined

16 by -- they're placed into groups.  The violations are

17 placed into groups depending upon the likelihood that

18 they could cause a crash.  So mechanical violations

19 are in groups 0, 1, 2 and 3.  Zero is deemed to very

20 rarely cause a crash, if ever.  Then 1 would be

21 something more likely to cause, and then 2 just below

22 1, 3 just below 2.  So of the mechanical violations,

23 1 is deemed to be most likely to cause a crash.

24             Then there are also violations that are

25 group 4 which are always fines.  They include things
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1 like driver behaviors, insurance and authority and

2 registration.

3        Q.   Does the Commission apply this process

4 uniformly to everyone?

5        A.   It is an automated process, yes, so

6 everybody is treated the same.

7        Q.   Do you have a document with you called

8 the Notice of Preliminary Determination?

9        A.   I do not.

10        Q.   Okay, I have a copy for you.

11             MS. KERN:  Your Honor, may I approach?

12             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Yes.

13             MS. KERN:  I'd like to have this document

14 marked as Staff Exhibit 2.  It's the Notice of

15 Preliminary Determination.

16             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  We'll go

17 ahead and mark that.  Thank you.

18             (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)

19        Q.   (By Ms. Kern) Mr. Moser, do you recognize

20 this document?

21        A.   I do.

22        Q.   And what is it?

23        A.   It is what in our office we refer to as

24 an NPD, a Notice of Preliminary Determination.  That

25 is a letter that is sent to a Respondent following an
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1 unsuccessful attempt to resolve issues during a

2 telephone conference with the assigned Case Manager.

3        Q.   So this document was sent to Mr. Hasan;

4 is that your understanding?

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   And did you review this document in

7 preparation for a hearing today?

8        A.   Yes, I did.

9        Q.   And is this document a Commission record?

10        A.   Yes, it is.

11        Q.   And it's kept in the ordinary course of

12 business; is that correct?

13        A.   It is, yes.

14        Q.   And can you explain how the civil

15 forfeiture of $250 for this specific case was

16 derived?

17        A.   Sure.  As I mentioned earlier, group 4

18 violations, which this particular offense is,

19 383.23A2, it's a group 4 violation.  It is always

20 $250.

21        Q.   Do you recall when I was asking Inspector

22 Morgan questions previously?

23        A.   Yes, uh-huh.

24        Q.   And he was asked about there were a

25 number -- by the Attorney-Examiner there were a
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1 number of violations that were listed on the

2 Examination Report.  Have you seen the Examination

3 Report?

4        A.   Yes, I have.

5        Q.   And we were just discussing the group 4

6 violation today because that applies to the driver;

7 is that correct?

8        A.   Correct.  So when the examiner or when

9 the Inspector creates the Inspection Report, he

10 assigns violations either to Unit 1, which would be

11 the power unit of the truck that he has stopped, or

12 Unit No. 2 which would be a trailer or the driver.

13             So those -- when they come into our

14 system, those are separated by entity type.  So all

15 driver violations go on a driver case.  All carrier

16 violations go on a different case for the carrier.

17 So we're only talking about just the driver case

18 here.

19        Q.   Thank you for clarifying.  And is the

20 penalty of $250 consistent with the recommended fine

21 schedule and recommended civil penalty procedure

22 adopted by the Commercial Motor Vehicle Alliance

23 (sic), to your knowledge?

24        A.   It is, yes.

25        Q.   You believe that this is a correct
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1 forfeiture amount for this case, correct?

2        A.   I do, yes.

3        Q.   Would you recommend this amount to the

4 Commission?

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   Is there anything else important to note

7 that we have not discussed which you would like the

8 Commission to know for the record?

9        A.   No; no, ma'am.

10             MS. KERN:  Thank you, your Honor.  I have

11 no further questions for the witness, and I'd like to

12 move all of Staff's exhibits into evidence.

13             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Thank you.

14 Just a moment, please.  I don't have any questions

15 for the witness.

16             Mr. Hasan, do you have any questions for

17 anything that Mr. Moser has just testified to?

18             MR. HASAN:  No.  Thank you.

19             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Okay, thank

20 you.  And Mr. Hasan, Staff has moved this second

21 document, they're seeking to move it into evidence.

22 Do you have any objections to admitting this

23 document?

24             MR. HASAN:  No.

25             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Okay, thank
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1 you.  And Staff Exhibit 2 will also be admitted into

2 the record.

3             MS. KERN:  Thank you, your Honor.

4             (EXHIBIT ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

5             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Anything

6 further from the Staff?

7             MS. KERN:  No, your Honor.  Thank you.

8             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Thank you.

9             All right, Mr. Hasan, now this is your

10 opportunity to kind of tell your side of the story.

11 You'll be able to give your testimony as to what you

12 believe happened on that day.

13             Staff may have some questions for you, I

14 may have some questions for you, and if you have any

15 documents or evidence that you'd like to present,

16 this would be your time to do it.  So I'd like to

17 invite you to come up to the witness stand.  Please

18 raise your right hand.

19             (Witness placed under oath.)

20                         - - -

21                      RAFAT HASAN

22 being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, was

23 examined and testified as follows:

24                    DIRECT TESTIMONY

25             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Go ahead and
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1 explain the events of what happened that day and your

2 perspective.

3             MR. HASAN:  Can I explain for everything

4 or just for the glasses?

5             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Well, the

6 violation that we're here today discussing is for the

7 glasses.  So if you have anything additional that

8 could relate to that violation, please feel free

9 to....

10             MR. HASAN:  That violation go to the

11 company I work for.  The violation for the glasses is

12 under my name, that's what I want to explain.

13             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Yeah, I

14 think I understand what you're saying.  So there was

15 already testimony that there were a number of

16 violations.  Most of them were going for the carrier

17 rather than to you directly.  That's not the case

18 that's in front of us today.  It's only the violation

19 relating to the glasses.

20             MR. HASAN:  Everything he said, it was

21 true, but it was from three months ago, not six

22 months, I told him that.  And I explained to him I

23 make surgery in my eyes.  I still didn't remove from

24 my license because my doctor said you have to remove

25 but to rest your eyes a little bit, then wear the
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1 glasses.  This is laser surgery and keep your eyes

2 safe.

3             So after that, I have to go remove the

4 glasses from my license, but that time when he

5 stopped me, I didn't wear it.  I told him I have a

6 proof but not with me, in my home.  I send you a

7 proof for my surgery.  I did it.  Then after that, I

8 go remove my glasses from the CDL, from the medical

9 card.

10             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  So are you

11 saying that you removed the glasses required on your

12 CDL after you were pulled over, after this violation?

13             MR. HASAN:  After the report, yeah.  And

14 he was -- He told me you have to wear the glasses as

15 soon as you have the license, you have to wear it.  I

16 said okay.  He said go wear it right now.  I didn't

17 know he wanted to give me a ticket.  I go wear it

18 right away.

19             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  So when

20 you're saying he, are you referring to Trooper

21 Morgan?

22             MR. HASAN:  Pardon me?

23             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  You keep

24 saying he.  Are you talking about the officer that

25 pulled you over that day?
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1             MR. HASAN:  Yes.  He said everything is

2 true.  I didn't complain.  I didn't say anything not

3 true, but I wore the glasses to save my eyes, but I

4 already make a surgery for it.  I told him I have a

5 proof from my doctor, but it's not with me, I send it

6 to the court.  My wife, she send it to the court I

7 make a surgery.  He said you have to remove the

8 glasses from your license.  I say okay.  That's all.

9             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Okay.

10             MR. HASAN:  So I got my license now, I

11 remove everything from the license.  I pass the test

12 and I'm removed from the medical doctor.  Can I give

13 to you this license and this is old license he gave

14 me ticket on?

15             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  So we have a

16 couple options here.  So one option would be I could

17 take your license that you provided here and make a

18 copy of them.  We could submit them potentially.  You

19 could try and admit them as exhibits to the record.

20             I'm not sure that that would be

21 necessary, so I'll kind of leave it up to you if

22 you'd like to do that.  I understand your testimony

23 today was that at the time that you were pulled over

24 you did have the glasses requirement on your license,

25 and after the fact, you did have the glasses
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1 requirement removed.

2             I don't think that that is in dispute

3 here today.  There's been no testimony that would

4 refute what you just said, so that's the reason why

5 I'm suggesting it might not be completely necessary

6 to admit these into the record.

7             MR. HASAN:  All right.

8             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Thank you.

9 Is there anything else that you'd like to add to your

10 testimony today?

11             MR. HASAN:  That's all.

12             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Okay, thank

13 you.

14             Miss Kern, do you have any questions for

15 the witness?

16             MS. KERN:  I think this has been

17 clarified but just a few.

18                         - - -

19                   CROSS-EXAMINATION

20 By Ms. Kern:

21        Q.   You admit, sir, that you were operating a

22 motor vehicle on the day of the inspection; is that

23 correct?

24        A.   Yes.

25        Q.   And you admit that at the time you were
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1 pulled over, your license required you to have

2 corrective lenses while driving; is that correct?

3        A.   Yes.

4             MS. KERN:  Your Honor, no further

5 questions.

6             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Okay, thank

7 you.  I don't have anymore questions for you.  Thank

8 you for your testimony.

9             MR. HASAN:  Thank you so much.

10             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Would you

11 like to rest your case now?  Is there anything else

12 you'd like to present to the Court?

13             MR. HASAN:  No.

14             ATTORNEY EXAMINER ST. JOHN:  Okay, thank

15 you.  And with that, I believe that brings the case

16 to a close.  Thank you all for your participation in

17 the hearing and for traveling in today if you've done

18 that.  The case is now going to be submitted to the

19 record.  Thank you very much, and we are adjourned.

20             (The hearing was concluded at 10:29 a.m.)

21                         - - -

22

23

24

25
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1                      CERTIFICATE

2             I do hereby certify that the foregoing is

3 a true and correct transcript of the proceedings

4 taken by me in this matter on Wednesday, November 3,

5 2021, and carefully compared with my original

6 stenographic notes.
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12

13                         - - -

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



This foregoing document was electronically filed with the Public Utilities

Commission of Ohio Docketing Information System on

11/17/2021 11:21:24 AM

in

Case No(s). 20-1437-TR-CVF

Summary: Transcript November 3rd 2021 In the Matter of Rafat Yousef Obeid
Hasan, Notice of Apparent Violation and Intent to Assess Forfeiture. electronically
filed by Mr. Ken Spencer on behalf of Armstrong & Okey, Inc. and Cunningham,
Cindy


	95800-cc-puco-110321

